AGENDA

WY RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
| REGULAR MEETING- 6:30 P.M
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2016
eLL CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

CarLrFormaA

WELCOME. .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the
Commission are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City
Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell Planning

Commission meetings often.

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. CEREMONIAL

1) 2016/0223.01 - Swearing in of Nick Angeloff, Billy Joe Long and R. L. “Bud” Leonard to the
Rio Dell Planning Commission for 3-year terms ending December 31, 2018

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

1) 2016/0223.02 - Approve Minutes of October 22, 2015 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1
2) 2016/0223.03 - Approve Minutes of the October 29, 2015 Continued Meeting (ACTION) 5
3) 2016/0223.04 - Approve Minutes of the January 14, 2016 Special Meeting (ACTION) 9

F. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Commission on any matter not on this agenda and
over which the Commission has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Commission or staff is not
intended. Items requiring Commission action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next
regular agenda for consideration if the Commission directs, unless a finding is made by at least
2/3rds of the Commission that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency
nature requiring immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

G. SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS

1) 2016/0223.05 - Adopt Resolution No. PC 095-2016 recommending approval of amending
the Removal of Natural Materials Regulations, Section 17.30.280 of the
Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 19



2) 2016/0223.06 - Adopt Resolution No. PC 094-2016 recommending the City Council
establish Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section
17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code {(RDMC)

(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 24

H. ADJOURNMENT

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707)

764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to
make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to the meeting.

The next Regular meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission is scheduled for
Tuesday, March 22, 2016 at 6:30 p.m.



CITY OF RIO DELL
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
OCTOBER 22, 2015

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by
Commissioner Angeloff.

Present were Commissioners Angeloff, Long, and Millington. Absent was Commissioner
Leonard (excused).

Others present were Community Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Motion was made by Long/Millington to approve the consent calendar including approval of
minutes of the September 3, 2015 special meeting and approval of minutes of the September 24,
2015 regular meeting. Motion carried 3-0.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

None
SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSION

Adopt Resolution No. PC 093-2015 recommending the City Council amend the “Definition™
provisions, Chapter 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to expand the “Definition™
provisions to include additional use types and other terms not currently defined in the Zoning
Regulations. Chapter 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC)

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said the definitions are
primarily the result of the Land Use Matrix update. He said staff added a number of sign
definitions and as such, will be updating the sign regulations as well.

He referred to the draft Definitions and noted that the areas in red were eliminated because of
revised definitions for new and improved land use types.

He said he understands the Commissioners have not had the opportunity to review the document
in any great detail so if they would like more time to look it over the meeting could be continued.
He said if not, the recommendation is to adopt Resolution No. PC 093-2015 as presented.

Commissioner Long commented that he personally would like more time to review the
document.

It was agreed to continue the meeting to October 29, 2015 at 6:30 p.m.

Commissioner Millington asked where the definitions came from.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 22, 2015 MINUTES
Page 2

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that most of the definitions came from the
City of Greenfield in Monterey County. He said they seem to have the most current zoning
ordinance in the state of California based on what he could find. He commented that he didn’t
use all of their use types as many were much more industrious than what Rio Dell would likely

ever have.
Staff continued with a brief review of the new use types.

Commissioner Angeloff referred to the definitions under Affordable Rent and commented that
HUD is continually changing things so it might be wise to say that the city will follow HUD

guidelines.

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that this definition has been on the books
since the 1980’s.

Commissioner Long referred to the various definitions for Adult Entertainment and asked if all
of the use types as identified in the Land Use Matrix were covered.

Community Development Director Caldwell confirmed that they were all covered and handed
out the most recent revision to the Land Use Matrix which was broken up by use types. He said
the Commissioners should be very proud in helping to create the Land Use Matrix stating that is
probably the best thing the Commission has done in quite awhile. He noted there are now a lot
of definitions that didn’t exist before and very few that are not related to the use types

themselves.

Commissioner Angeloff asked how the density bonus provisions compare to other cities.
Community Development Director Caldwell stated the language is straight out of State law.

Commissioner Long commented that the density bonus allows developers to crowd in more
apartment units yet there are millios of acres of forest land that cannot be developed. He

questioned the need for dense development.

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that the idea is that it’s better for the
environment to have a smaller footprint however; that point can be argued because not everyone
wants to live in a 600 sq. fi. apartment in a 4-story building without a vehicle or any pets. He
added that you need to provide those housing opportunites for those that do. He stated that it is

really market driven.

Commissioner Angeloff commented that a lot has to do with low income folks and the elderly.
He said his argument is that what is happen



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 22, 2016 MINUTES
Page 3

back to a situation like it was when people first settled here in the 1850’s or so and that’s the
baseline. He said Indian people have lived here for thousands of years and the fact is that the

population of Humboldt County is about the same as it was for the last 4,000-5,000 years. He
said the difference is that people spread themselves over the land and there were no water or
sewer systems and the water from the streams was drinkable. He said spreading people like that
is far less damaging to the environment than condensing the popuiation into urban areas where
one sewage spill can contaminate a large area which negatively impacts the environment.

Commissioner Long commented that the other issue is that when you cram people into smaller
and smaller areas it affects them mentally and their attitudes toward one another. He said tension

and animosity tends to build between tenants.

Community Development Director Caldwell said his opinion is that people didn’t move to
Humboldt County to live in a 4-story mixed use building near a bus line, where you hear traffic,
dogs barking and sirens, and to have no vehicle. He said they moved here because of the desire
to live in a rural area and enjoy everything it offers. Again, he said affordable housing and multi-
family opportunities have to be provided for those that do.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained the first Land Use Matrix presented to the
Commission included definitions but they were not part of the Definitions chapter 17.10 of the
Zoning Regulations in the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). He said what this does is codifies
those definitions from the Land Use Matrix to the Definitions Chapter of the Zoning

Regulations. He continued by reviewing the newly added definitions that were not previously

reviewed under the Land Use Matrix.

Commissioner Millington referred to the definition of Manufactured Home and asked for
clarification of the term “body feet.”

Staff explained it refers to the body length of the trailer itself, independent of the hitch.

Commissioner Millington identified the new definition of Animal Keeping as a use type not
identified in the Land Use Matrix.

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the use type Feed Lot also needs to be
added to the Land Use Matrix as principally permitted in the Industrial Zone.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Angeloff/Long to continue the meeting to October 29, 2015 at 6:30 p.m.
Motion carried 3-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 22, 2015 MINUTES
Page 4

Nick Angeloff, Chair

Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



CITY OF RIO DELL
PLANNING COMMISSION
CONTINUED MEETING
OCTOBER 29, 2015

The continued meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by
Commissioner Angeloff.

Present were Commissioners Angeloff, Long, and Millington. Absent was Commissioner
Leonard (excused).

Others present were Community Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

None
SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSION

Adopt Resolution No. PC 093-20135 recommending the City Counci! amend the “Definition”
provisions. Chapter 17.10 of the Ric Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to expand the “Definition”
provisions to include additional use types and other terms not currently defined in the Zoning

Regulations, Chapter 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code {(RDMC)

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and said the purpose of
continuing the meeting was to allow Commissioners more time to review the Draft Definitions
and revised Land Use Matrix presented at the October 22, 2015 regular meeting.

Commissioner Millington referred to the definition of Accessory Horse Keeping and suggested it
be changed to AccessoryLarge Animal Keeping since it also refers to other animals such as
llamas, alpacas, ponies, mules and donkeys.

The question arose as to whether llamas and alpacas are included in the equine family.

Commissioner Angeloff explained that llamas and alpacas actually in the camel family because
they have split lips.

Commissioner Angeloff referred to the definition of Animal Husbandry and noted that it
excludes slaughterhouses and feedlot operations and asked for clarification that those definitions

were included under a separate category.

Community Development Director Caldwell said the definition for Feedlot was included but the
definition for Slaughterhouse seemed to have been left out. He indicated that there is another
term used for slaughterhouses and as Councilmember Marks pointed out, the former
slaughterhouse in Scotia was referred to as an “abattoir.” He said would research other terms

and definitions and include it in the current definitions.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 29, 2015 MINUTES
Page 2

Commissioner Millington noted that Veterinary Facilities are not principally permitted in any
zone and thought they should be allowed where other medical facilities are allowed.

Community Development Director Caldwell said the Commission talked about Veterinary
Facilities being principally permitted in the Industrial Commetcial (IC) zone but the intent for
that area at the Eel River Industrial Park is to reserve it for highway commercial uses. As such,
it was agreed to conditionally permit the use in CC, NC, IC and NR zones.

Commissioner Millington stated that she would like the use principally permitted somewhere so
that it is convenient for people to drop off their animals and said the Industrial Park is a little out

of the way.

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he didn’t think it would be
inconvenient or out of the way and said one of the advantages of a Conditional Use Permit
besides giving the neighborhood the opportunity to participate in the process is that it gives the
Commission the ability to impose performance standards and if they don’t comply with those
operational conditions, it becomes a violation of their permit.

After further discussion, the consensus of the Commission was to principally permit Veterinary
Facilities in IC and conditionally permit them in the CC, NC and NR zones as proposed.

It was then suggested that staff come up with an alternative name for Slaughteritouse.

Commissioner Angeloff noted that slaughterhouses are not places of pleasantry and the City
should certainly have control over the smell and other conditions. As such, he suggested
slaughterhouses be conditionally permitted in the Industrial (I) zone.

Commissioner Long noted that other synonyms for Slaughterhouse are abattoir, shambles, and
knacker’s yard or stock yard.

Community Development Director Caldwell said Slaughterhouses were included on the
previous version of the Land Use Matrix and was apparently left out in error. He said he would
make sure to include it in the final version going to the City Council on November 3, 2015.

Commissioner Angeloff questioned regulations for soft-sided water storage and suggested the
ordinance be amended to incorporate language to address soft sided water storage tanks. He said
the County is in the process developing guidelines and that the Department of Fish and Game
and the Water Quality Control Board are also getting on board. He noted that the concern lies
with massive failure and Aqua Dam’s design precludes massive failure whereas the surplus

Army models are questionable.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 29, 2015 MINUTES
Page 3

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the California Building Code allows for
exemptions with regard to building permits for tanks 5,000 gallons or less. Anything above
5,000 gallons requires a permit, primarily to insure stability of the tank and some of the taller
tanks could be susceptible to rolling over during an earthquake. Also, based on location of the
tank, may want to create a check dam around it to try and contain most of the water in the event

of failure.

Commissioner Angeloff noted that the Water Quality Control Board would rather see ponds to
facilitate ground water recharge as opposed to hard storage. He said the Department of Fish and
Game has historically been against large scale water storage but because of the drought situation
is changing their views. He said he would like to see the City encourage the capturing and
storage of storm water, especially off of roofs for dry periods.

He further stated that ground water recharge is good but if someone is only capturing storm
water that is good because that water is ultimately going out to sea anyway.

Melissa Marks commented that she thought the State of California owned the water that runs off
roofs.

Commissioner Angeloff stated that storm water capture is now encouraged and the issue with
water runcff from roofs had to do with water coming off of asphalt roof tiles and the potential
contaminants. He said the capture of storm water is now preferred by the State and they don’t
like to see water drawn from the ground or the river during a 90-day driest period of the year.

Commissioner Millington commented that it makes sense because she watched a special segment
on television and learned that there are several parts of California where the ground is actually
sinking and in one particular place actually sunk two feet in one year. She agreed with the
importance of not pulling water from the ground.

Motion was made by Millington/Long to adopt Resolution No. 093-2015 recommending the City
Council amend the “Definition” provisions, Chapter 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
(RDMC) to expand the “Definitions” provisions to include additional use types and other terms
not currently defined in the Zoning Regulations, Chapter 17 of the RDMC as amended to include
Staughterhouses and to principally permit Veterinary Facilities in the Industrial Commercial

(IC) zone. Motion carried 3-0.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Long/Millington to adjourn the meeting at 7:03 p.m. to the next regularly
scheduled meeting on December 22, 2015. Motion carried 3-0.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 29, 2015 MINUTES
Page 4

Nick Angeloff, Chair

Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



CITY OF RIO DELL
PLANNING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING
JANUARY 14, 2016

A Special meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by
Commissioner Long.

Present were Commissioners Long, Millington and Woodall. Absent were Commissioners
Angeloff and Leonard (excused). (Commissioner Angeloff arrived at 7:30 p.m.)

Others present were Community Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham.

CEREMONIAL

Introduction of Planning Commissioner Julie Woodall
Commissioner Long formally introduced and welcomed Julie Woodall to the Rio Dell Planning

Commission, appointed to fill the unexpired term of Jared Wilson ending December 31, 2016.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
None
SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations. Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code (RDMC)

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and said as the
Commission is aware, Governor Brown approved the Medical Marijuana Regulations and Safety
Act (MMRSA) comprised of three bills enacted by the legislature; SB 643, AB 243 and AB 266
which will come into effect in 2018. He explained what that did is create a permitting process at
the State level as well as the local level of medical marijuana as an agricultural product including
cultivation, processing, testing, manufacture, distribution, transportation, dispensing, and
delivery. He noted that local government can create a more stringent permitting process but not

less stringent.

He continued with a power point presentation on Commercial Medical Marijuana related to the
Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act (MMRSA) and its significance to local

government.

He explained the MMRSA protects local control by requiring that all marijuana businesses have
a local permit or license in addition to a state license. He said the Act requires that local
jurisdictions develop regulations by March 1, 2016 or be pre-empted by state law however; there
is current legislation under AB 21 to extend that deadline. He noted that the City has adopted
local regulations regarding cannabis cultivation for personal medicinal use and the City Attorney
indicated that the existing regulations under Section 17.30.190 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 2

does satisfy the state requirement. He said if he had known about the new legislation to extend
the deadline he would not have scheduled a special meeting with the Commission. He
commented that this will allow the Commission however; to go through the process at a very
deliberate pace in developing and recommending to the City Council local regulations for

commercial cannabis related activities.

Staff continued with review of the ten (10) State cultivator license types under AB 243 which
include:

e Typel - Specialty Outdoor

» Type 1A - Specialty Indoor

e Type 1B - Specialty Mixed-Light
e Type2 - Small Outdoor

e Type2A - Small Indoor

* Type 2B - Small Mixed-Light

o Type3 - Outdoor

o Type 3A - Indoor

e Type3 - Nursery

Commissioner Woodall asked if all outdoor grows will be required to be in a greenhouse.

Staff responded that the recommendation will be that all outdoor cultivation of cannabis be
conducted entirely within a fully enclosed, secure and lockable greenhouse and the type of
license will be based on the size of the parcel and the zone.

Tim Stack stated that because marijuana is listed as a Schedule 1 drug, the Federal government
can still come in and enforce federal laws. He commented that there is a lot of contradiction

with regard to cannabis laws. Also, with regard to pre-licensing with the County of Humboldt
there are only so many licenses issued and people are afraid if they put their name on the list they

may be audited by I.LR.S.

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that President Obama said that the
Federal government wouldn’t go after those states that adopted their own regulations however;
the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) isn’t on the same page. He said as far as licensing, he
personally feels that Humboldt, Trinity and Del Norte Counties should have a larger number of

licenses.

With regard to manufacturing and testing laboratories, the State Department of Public Health is
responsible for the regulations governing the licensing of those activities. The two (2) types of

manufacturing licenses include:

10



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 3

o Typeb - Manufacturing Level 1
o Type7 - Manufacturing Level 2

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that testing is required for all cannabis
products and testing laboratories must adopt standard operation procedures using methods
consistent with general requirements for the competence of testing and calibration activities
including sampling. He noted that a testing licensee shall not hold a license in another license
type and shall not own or have ownership in any other license type. There is a single license
type for testing which is:

» Type8 - Testing

He said dispensaries will operate much the same way as they do today from the patient’s
perspective but on the business side, the regulations will change. He noted that dispensaries will
be prevented from purchasing or accepting cannabis from an unlicensed grower and all products
within the dispensary will be required to be tracked from the moment it enters the dispensary to

the point of sale.
Dispensary licenses include:

o TypelO - Dispensary - General
e Type 10A - Dispensary - No More Than Three (3) Retail Sites

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that there will be an app that people can
put on their phones that will identify the locations of dispensaries throughout the state. He also
said that he is suggesting that the City submit Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) for dispensaries if
or when they become legal in the City, to insure clean, attractive and secure facilities.

Commissioner Millington asked if there is anything mentioned in the State regulations related to
GMO’s (genetically modified organisms) in cannabis products.

Community Development Director Caldwell responded that he was not aware of the issue of
GMO’s being addressed.

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that a distribution license is intended (o track
cannabis distribution in an orderly manner and to insure that the cannabis is safe for patients by
forcing it to be distributed through a third party including its testing.

There is a single license type for distribution which is:

e Typell - Distribution

1



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 4

Staff explained a distributor must purchase medical cannabis from a licensed cultivator or
medical cannabis products from a licensed manufacturer and must sell only to a licensed
dispensary.

Staff then explained that growers can no longer transport cannabis to a dispensary. Under the
new regulations, a third party is required to transport cannabis from the cultivation site or
processing facility to the distributor and from there to the dispensary. He said a transporter’s
license is now required to transport cannabis from any one licensee to another, regardless of
type. In addition, transporters are prohibited from having any other type of license except for a
distributor license. There is a single license type for transporting cannabis which is:

e Typel2 - Transporter

Next was review of the Table of License Types and staff’s recommendations with regard to
commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use within the City of Rio Dell. The license type
and allowable canopy of cannabis was determined by the size of the parcel.

It was recommended that indoor cultivation shall be conditionally permitted in the Industrial
Commercial (IC), Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) land use designations pursuant to the
parcel sizes contained in the Table.

Nurseries producing commercial cannabis, nursery products for retail sale, bulk wholesale or to
supply retail nursery outlets were recommended to be conditionally permitted in the same three

land use designations.

Processing facilities were recommended to be conditionally permitted in the Industrial (IC),
Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations as well.

Manufacturing of commercial cannabis was recommended to be conditionally permitted in only
the Industrial Commercial (IC) designation.

Staff explained manufacturing involves the process of taking all or portions of the raw plant and
transforming the cannabis into a concentrate, edible product or a topical product either directly or
indirectly by extraction methods. It was noted that these products will be required to be sent
through a distributor and testing licensee who will test for concentration, purity of the product

and contaminants.

He said Level I Manufacturing involves the production of medical cannabis products using
nonvolatile solvents whereas; Level 2 Manufacturing produces products using volatile solvents
such as butane, hexane or ethanol. He said this process will be regulated at a higher level and the
number of licenses issued by the State Department of Public Health will be limited due to safety.

12



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 5

Commissioner Millington referred to the Definitions section of the draft ordinance under
Commercial Cannabis Cultivation and said the definition encompasses all activities involving
cultivation then when you look at the definition for Processing Facility the activities are broken
out which seems to be conflicting with the definition for Cultivation.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained the reason for having separate definitions
is because some cannabis may be processed onsite where it is cultivated.

A member of the public asked if drying of the product is considered part of the processing.
Staff commented that drying can be part of the processing but doesn’t have to be.

Testing Laboratories were recommended to be principally permitted in the Town Center (TC),
Community Commercial {CC) and Neighborhood Center (NC) designations and conditionally
permitted in the Residential Multifamily (RM) designation.

Commissioner Long suggested there be some discussion regarding allowing laboratories in the
CC and NC zones because they border residential neighborhoods. He said the Commission
needs to be considerate of the residents who live in those areas.

Discussion continued regarding testing protocol; staff agreed to verify the requirements and
report back to the Commission at the next meeting.

Melissa Marks commented that she would like to get input from the Chief of Police on the issue
of cannabis activities in the City.

Community Development Director Caldwell said he discussed the subject with Chief Hill and he
is very supportive.

Maelissa Marks commented that she would like to hear that from him.

Staff pointed out that dispensaries are not allowed in the City under the current regulations but
could be a benefit to the City if they were permitted.

Commissioner Long asked if the product that goes to the laboratory for testing is the entire
amount or a sampling.

Community Development Director explained the way he understands it, the entire amount is
taken to the laboratory and from that they do batch sampling. The product is then labeled and

stored in air-tight packaging.

T4



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 6

Melissa Marks commented that she has a hard time visualizing people transporting huge
amounts of cannabis to laboratories for testing.

Staff noted that it is possible that laboratories will be able to go to the processing facility and test
the product and reiterated that he will research the protocols for testing and report back to the

Commission.

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that the City has the opportunity to reap
the benefits of the cannabis industry thanks to Councilmember Garnes for taking the initiative to
begin the dialog. He said after the workshop at the school, staff received several calls from
people in the industry who want to bring their business to Rio Dell and are offering to pay the

City taxes.
Commissioner Angeloff arrived at this time, 7:30 p.m.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that the extraction process separates the
THC so cannabis can be used for medicinal purposes without the effect of getting high which is
one of the reasons edibles are so popular.

He referred to an article written by Dr. Sanjay Gupta who changed his mind about the dangers
of cannabis. He said he had no idea how different cannaboids treat different ailments.

Discussion continued regarding potential economic opportunities for the City with regard to the
cannabis industry.

Melissa Marks asked if a user fee could be charged to fund an additional police officer position.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained charges cannot exceed the cost to
administer the program.

Commissioner Angeloff stated that his main concemn is with regard to concentrates and
extraction of oils and asked if the City has the ability to regulate that activity and monitor for

compliance.

Staff explained not only does the City have the control to regulate it, but the State has actually
budgeted for five or six agencies to regulate the processes.

He explained the two types of extraction processes once again: one using non-volatile solvents
and one using volatile solvents such as butane, hexane or ethanol. He agreed that volatile
solvents spark fires and noted the City has the ability to eliminate that method of extraction.

14



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 7

He pointed out that one pound of extracted product is valued at $45,000 if it is pure with no
pesticides or cardigans etc.

Community Development Director Caldwell then referenced the Granny Storm Crow's List
which provides data on older and more recent studies regarding the various medical uses for
cannabis. He said there is documented information that between the years 1860-1930 cannabis

was prescribed to patients for various medical conditions.

Commissioner Angeloff pointed out that cocaine was also prescribed. He said his issue is with
regard to the THC in cannabis and potential for overdosing as well as regulation of concentrated
oils and the production of products put into edibles.

James Cortazar pointed out that that’s where testing comes in.

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that nothing is being regulated and what
AB 266 does in part is requires establishment of uniform health and safety standards, testing
standards, and security requirements at dispensaries. It also specifies a standard for certification
of testing labs, and specified minimum testing requirements to protect public health.

Commissioner Long asked if staff had any information regarding other communities that have
implemented this program for any length of time.

The Cities of San Jose and Desert Hot Springs were mentioned.

James Cortazar pointed out that the City of San Jose has an incredible amount of seniors who
depend on medical marijuana.

Tim Stack stated that dispensaries are one thing and the production of edibles is entirely
different and falls under the Department of Public Health Food Processing Division. He said if
Rio Dell decides to move forward and allow cannabis activities in the City he would advise to
proceed slowly. He said the City of San Jose at one time had around 100 dispensaries in
operation and that number has decreased significantly. He said the same happened in Alameda
County and Los Angeles County because of over-regulation.

He said from an economic aspect, warned to not let the activity explode: allowing the City to
lose control.

Community Development Director Caldwell reported that there were 2,500 registered
dispensaries in California; today there are 810.

James Cortazar commented that in Harborside, the number of dispensaries actually expanded.

15



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 8

Commissioner Angeloff reiterated that he had no problem with tinctures for medical purposes;
but with the extraction of concentrates.

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that the discussions are related to
medical marijuana; not recreational marijuana. He encouraged the Commission to take a look at
the issue with open eyes and the regulation of medical marijuana for medicinal purposes.

Commissioner Long stated that his primary concern is having the ability to regulate something
that is so apparent already as well as security. He said he is aware of the environment around it
and anytime money is involved there is crime.

Staff said in the City of Desert Hot Springs, they require four (4) security cameras in every room
of a dispensary with armed guards 24 hours/day. He said the cannabis is weighed in the morning
and again at night to make sure everything is accounted for.

Community Development Director Caldwell agreed to research violent crime statistics related to
cannabis in Colorado and Washington and report back to the Commission.

Commissioner Woodall stated that Rio Dell is not a pristine community and marijuana is
prevalent here so she would rather see it regulated and have some control because it’s not going
away. She commented that she visited a dispensary in Colorado and it had the appearance of any

other store front.

James Cortazar suggested Commissioners visit the dispensary in Arcata and said it has been
there for years and is operated in a safe and professional manner. He noted that the clientele
doesn’t look any different than the people present here tonight.

Melissa Marks questioned whether the baking restrictions related to cash bank deposits will be
lifted when or if medical marijuana become legal in California.

Commissioner Angeloff stated that many banks will not allow cash from dispensaries to be
deposited because of FDIC regulations however; over the next year he believes there will be
agreements in place with local banks.

He said Colorado and Washington are having problems with regard to edibles and asked staff to
reaffirm that the manufacturing of the concentrate itself is treated the same as the making of

edibles.

Community Development Director Caldwell responded that the problem had to do with
contamination from pesticides. He referred to State law with regard to manufacturing of

cannabis products.

16



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 9

A member from the public stated that the process of creating concentrate is the illegal part of the
process because it is potentially dangerous.

Commissioner Angeloff expressed his dual concern; manufacturing of concentrates and the
product itself and if the concentrate is put on the shelf and not put in the edible, the opportunity
for children to get ahold it and ingest an overdose amount.

Community Development Director Caldwell said the idea behind regulation is to make the
products safer.

Commissioner Angeloff asked staff to also look at this issue with an open mind.

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that he is looking at it with an open mind and
is willing to listen to anyone’s concerns. He said the big issues seem to be with concentrates, the
process and the end product when it comes to heavily concentrated THC.

Commissioner Angeloff said he personally feels there needs to be strong focus on marijuana not
being supplied to minors. He said he realizes he needs to break out and get rid of his aversion to
some of the issues related to marijuana and that he is fully aware of the potential economic

development affects to the community.

He said everyone needs to realize that these medical marijuana regulations will likely be applied
to recreational use in the near future. He stressed the importance of having it heavily regulated.

Commissioner Millington urged everyone to not just regulate and over tax the activities but to be
reasonable. She said if it is embraced and welcomed it will foster a much smoother transition to

legal recreational use.

James Cortazar commented that the community has been in a depression both economically
and socially and it could turn around by embracing the opportunities marijuana offers. He said
branding for Humboldt County is another opportunity as it has been known as the marijuana

capital so it will go national.

Commissioner Angeloff predicted large growers lowering the price of marijuana and
subsequently putting the small growers out of business.

Community Development Detector Caldwell said that why limits will be placed on cultivation
activities so the mom-and-pop boutique growers will survive.

Commissioner Angeloff stated that there are always ways around rules and regulations and he
can see the handwriting on the wall.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
JANUARY 14, 2016
Page 10

Community Development Director Caldwell said his idea is to get rid of the illegal hash labs in
town by making them legal and moving them to the Eel River Industrial Park.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Woodall/Long to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 p.m. to the January 26, 2016
regular meeting. Motion carried 4-0.

Nick Angeloff, Chair

Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

18



E— S iy OF

675 Wildwood Avenue 1 |O E

Rio Dell, CA 95562 DeLL
(707) 764-3532 g

L AF =

For Meeting of: February 23, 2016

To: Pianning Commission
From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director@

Through: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

Date: February 5, 2016
Subject: Removal of Natural Materials, Section 17.30.280 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
(RDMC)

Recommendation:

That the Planning Commission:

1. Receive staff's report regarding the existing Removal of Natural Materials Regulations;
2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate:
S Find that:

(a) The proposed text amendment is consistent with the General Plan; and

(b) The proposed text amendment has been processed in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA):

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 095-2016 recommending approval of amending
the Removal of Natural Materials Regulations, Section 17.30.280 of the
Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

Background and Discussion

Staff recently discovered that Section 17.30.280, Removal of Natural Materials, of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code (RDMC) refers to the Uniform Building Code (UBC). The Uniform Building

Removal of Natural Materials Regulations PC February 23,2016



Code was replaced by the California Building Code (CBC) in 2000. Staff is accordingly
recommending that the Removal of Natural Materials regulations accurately reflect the
California Building Code (CBC).

Below is a opy of the exisiting regulations with the recommended changes:
17.30.280 Removal of Natural Materials.

A grading permit issued by the Building Official is required for all clearing or earthwork within the
City of Rio Dell, except for those earthwork or clearing activities specifically exempted in
Chapter33 Appendix J of the Uniferm California Building Code and-its-Appendix. [Ord. 252

§ 6.17, 2004.]

Procedural Requirements

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance:

* An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning
Commission, or the City Council.

+ The application of one or mare property owners for the initiation of an amendment shall
be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing fee.

» Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing.

» Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three
public places.

* Atthe public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

 Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submiit
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore.

» Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council,
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as
provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof.

» At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof.

Removal of Natural Materials Regulations PC February 23, 2016

20



= The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council.

Zone Reclassification Required Findings:

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected.

There are no polices in the General Plan which would prohibit amending the Removal of Natural
Materials regulations to accurately reflect the California Building Code (CBC).

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the
project is not subject to CEQA. Based an the minor nature of the proposed amendment, staff
believes there is no evidence to suggest that the amendment will have a significant effect on

the environment.

Attachments

Attachment 1: Resolution No. PC 095-2016 recommending that the City Council amend the
Removal of Natural Materials to accurately reference the California Building

Code (CBC).

Removal of Natural Materials Regulations PC February 23, 2016

21



RESOLUTION NO. PC 095-2016

Cry of

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AMENDING THE REMOVAL OF NATURAL
MATERIALS REGULATIONS, SECTION 17.30.280 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL
CODE:

WHEREAS staff recently discovered that Section 17.30.280, Removal of Natural Materials, of
the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) refers to the Uniform Building Code (UBC); and

WHEREAS the Uniform Building Code was replaced by the California Building Code (CBC}) in
2000; and

WHEREAS staff is accordingly recommending that the Removal of Natural Materials regulations
accurately reference the California Building Code (CBC); and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act

(CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell finds
that:

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific
plan; and

2. The proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the

ATTACHMENT 1

22



CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio
Dell recommends that the City Council approve the proposed amendment of Section 17.30.280,
Removal of Natural Materials, of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reference
the California Building Code (CBC).

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on February 23, 2016 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson

ATTEST:

|, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 095-20165 adopted by the
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on February 23, 2016.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell

23



= T LTy OF

675 Wildwood Avenue ? RIO E
Rio Dell, CA 85562
DeLL

(707) 764-3532

LA HORNA

For Meeting of: February 23, 2016

To: Planning Commission

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director@

Through: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

Date: February 8, 2016

Subject: Establishing Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section

17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC)

Recommendation:
That the Planning Commission:

1. Receive staff's report regarding establishing Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use
Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code;

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate;
3. Find that:
(a) The proposed text amendment is consistent with the General Plan; and
{b) The proposed text amendment has been processed in accordance with the

applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA);

4. Adopt PC 094-2016 recommending that the City Council establish Medical Marijuana
Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

Medical Manjiuar;é' Commercial Land Use Regulations PC February 23, 2016

24



Background

As the Commission is aware our meeting of January 14" was not an official meeting due to the
fact that the terms of Commissioner’s Angeloff, Long and Leonard expired at the end of last
year. As such, I plan on briefly touching on all the same issues that were discussed at the
meeting of January 14™.

As you may already likely know on February 3", Governor Brown removed the March 1°%
deadline that local jurisdictions had to develop their own regulations.

On October 9, 2015 Governor Brown approved the Medical Marijuana Regulations and Safety
Act (MMRSA), a package of three bills enacted by the legislature on September 11, 2015, AB
243, AB 266 and SB 643. The MMRSA provides for comprehensive, concurrent regulation and
licensing by state and local governments of medical marijuana as an agricultural product,
including its cultivation, processing, testing, manufacture, distribution, transportation,
dispensing, and delivery.

Summary of the Medical Marijuana Regulations and Safety Act

The three bills comprising the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act are summarized
below:

AB 243 (Wood) regulates marijuana cultivation and provides a regulatory structure specifically
to address environmental impacts.

® Places the Department of Food and Agriculture (DFA) in charge of licensing and
regulation of indoor and outdoor cultivation sites. Creates a Medical Cannabis
Cultivation Program within the department.

® Mandates the Department of Pesticide Regulation (DPR) to develop standards for
pesticides in marijuana cultivation, and maximum tolerances for pesticides and other
foreign object residue.

® Mandates the Department of Public Health to develop standards for production and
labeling of all edible medical cannabis products.

® Assign joint responsibility to DFA, Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the State
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to prevent illegal water diversion associated

with marijuana cultivation from adversely affecting California fish population.

® Specifies that DPR, in consultation with SWRCB, is to develop regulations for

Medical Marjuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PC February 23, 2016

25



application of pesticides in all cultivation.
Specifies various types of cultivation licenses.

Directs the multi-agency task force headed by the Department of Fish and Wildlife and
the SWRCB to expand its existing enforcement efforts to a statewide level to reduce
adverse impacts of marijuana cultivation, including environmental impacts such as
illegal discharge into waterways and poisoning of marine life and habitats.

AB 266 (Bonta, Cooley, Jones-Sawyer, Lackey and Wood) contains the critical local control
provisions and most of the core provisions of the regulatory structure, headed by the
Department of Consumer Affairs.

Protects local control as it establishes a statewide regulatory scheme, headed by Bureau
of Medical Marijuana Regulation (BMMR) within the Department of Consumer Affairs
(DCA).

Provides for dual licensing: state will issue licenses, and local gavernments will issue
permits or licenses to operate marijuana businesses, according to local ordinances.
State licenses will be issued beginning in January 2018.

Revocation of a local license or permit will unilaterally terminate the ability of the
business to operate in that jurisdiction.

Expressly protects local licensing practices, zoning ordinances, and local
constitutional police power.

Caps total cultivation for a single licensee at four acres statewide, subject to local
ordinances.

Requires local jurisdictions that wish to prevent delivery services from operating within
their borders to enact an ordinance affirmatively banning this activity. No specific
operative date for the ban is specified.

Specifies that DCA will issue the following licenses: Dispensary, Distributor,
Transport, and Special Dispensary Status for licensees who have a maximum of three
dispensaries. Specifies various sub-categories of licensees {indoor cultivation,
outdoor cultivation, etc.)

Limits cross-licensing to holding a single state license in up to two separate license

categories, as specified. Prohibits medical marijuana licensees from also holding licenses
to sell alcohal.

Medical Manjiuahg Commercial Land Use Regulations PC February 23, 2016 -

26



® Grandfathers in vertically integrated businesses (i.e. businesses that operate and
control their own cultivation, manufacturing, and dispensing operations) if a local
ordinance allowed or required such a business model and was enacted on or before
July 1, 2015. Also requires such businesses to have operated in compliance with local
ordinances, and to have been engaged in all the covered activities on July 1, 2015.

® Requires establishment of uniform health and safety standards, testing standards, and
security requirements at dispensaries and during transport of the product.

® Specifies a standard for certification of testing labs, and specified minimum testing
requirements. Prohibits testing lab operators from being licensees in any other
category, and from holding a financial or ownership interest in any other category of
licensed business.

® Includes a labor peace agreement under which unions agree not to engage in strikes,
work stoppages, etc. and employers agree to provide unions reasonable access to
employees for the purpose of organizing them. Specifies that such an agreement does
not mandate a particular method of election.

® Provides for civil penalties for unlicensed activity, and specifies that applicable criminal
penalties under existing law will continue to apply.

® Specifies that patients and primary caregivers are exempt from the state licensing
requirement, and provides that their information is not to be disclosed and is
confidential under the California Public Records Act.

® Phases out the existing model of marijuana cooperatives and collectives one year
after DCA announces that state licensing has begun.

5B 643 {McGuire) contains critical provisions on criteria for state licensing, including
disqualifying felonies. It also regulates physicians making medical marijuana recommendations
and requires digital seed-to-sale or track-and-trace program for marijuana, similar to that
employed for agricultural products.

® Directs California Medical Board to prioritize investigation of excessive
recommendations by physicians.

® Imposes fines ($5000.00) vs. physicians for violating prohibition against having a
financial interest in a marijuana business.

® Recommendation for cannabis without a prior examination constitutes unprofessional
conduct.

* Medical Marﬁua;aa Commercial Land Use Regulatiohs PC Februar};_23, 2016

27



® Imposes restrictions on advertising for physician recommendations.

® Places Department of Food and Agriculture in charge of cultivation regulations
and licensing, and requires a track and trace program.

® Codifies dual licensing (state license and local license or permit), and itemizes
disqualifying felonies for state licensure.

® Places DPR in charge of pesticide regulation; DPH in charge of production and
labeling of edibles.

® Upholds local power to levy fees and taxes.

The Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act is significant for local jurisdictions because it:

® Protects local control by requiring that all marijuana businesses have a local permitor
license — in addition to a state license.

® Provides public safety by providing mandatory minimum statewide security
requirements and specifying criteria for state licensing, including disqualifying felonies;

® Protects public health with mandatory minimum statewide health and safety standards,
backed up by mandatory product testing; and

® Ensures patient safety with quality assurance protocols requiring random sample testing
by certified laboratories for all medical marijuana sold in California.

State License Types

AB 243 has established ten (10) State cultivator license types issued by the Department of Food
and Agriculture.

® Type 1, “Specialty Outdoor”, for outdoor cultivation using no artificial lighting of less
than or equal to 5,000 square feet of total canopy size on one premises.

® Type 1A, “Specialty Indoor”, for indoor cultivation using exclusively artificial lighting of
less than or equal to 5,000 square feet of total canopy size on one premises.

® Type 1B, “Specialty Mixed-Light”, for cultivation using a combination of natural and
supplemental artificial lighting at a maximum threshold to be determined by the

Medical Manjuana Commercial Land Use Regulat.rons PC February 23, 2016

28



licensing authority, of less than or equal to 5,000 square feet of total canopy size on one
premises.

Type 2, “Small Outdoor”, for outdoor cultivation using no artificial lighting between
5001 and 10,000 square feet, inclusive, of total canopy size on one premises.

Type 2A, “Small Indoor”, for indoor cultivation using exclusively artificial lighting
between 5001 and 10,000 square feet, inclusive, of total canopy size on one premises.

Type 2B, “Small Mixed-Light”, for cultivation using a combination of natural and
supplemental artificial lighting at a maximum threshold to be determined by the
licensing authority, between 5001 and 10,000 square feet, inclusive, of total canopy size
on one premises.

Type 3, “Outdoor”, for outdoor cultivation using no artificial lighting from 10,001 square
feet to one acre inclusive, of total canopy size on one premises. The Department of
Food and Agriculture shall limit the number of licenses allowed of this type.

Type 3A, “Indoor”, for indoor cultivation using exclusively artificial lighting between
10,001 and 22,000 square feet, inclusive, of total canopy size on one premises. The
Department of Food and Agriculture shall limit the number of licenses allowed of this

type.

Type 3B, “Mixed Light”, for cultivation using a combination of natural and supplemental
artificial lighting at a maximum threshold to be determined by the licensing authority,
between 10,001 and 22,000 square feet, inclusive, of total canopy size on one premises.
The Department of Food and Agriculture shall limit the number of ficenses allowed of
this type.

Type 4, “Nursery”, for cultivation for cultivation of medical cannabis solely as a nursery.
Type 4 licensees may transport live plants.

The State Department of Public Health is responsible for the regulations governing the licensing
of cannabis manufactures and testing laboratories.

Manufacturing involves the process of taking all or portions of the raw plant and transforming
the cannabis into a concentrate, an edible product, or a topical product either directly or
indirectly, by extraction methods, independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a

 Medical Marijuéha Commercial Land Use Réghlations PC Feb;ﬁary 23, 2016

29



combination of extraction and chemical synthesis. A manufacturing licensee may not send
product directly to a dispensary, but instead will have to send all cannabis through a distributor
and testing licensee, who will test for concentration, purity of product, and contaminants
Manufacturing licenses to be issued are as follows:

® Type 6, “Manufacturing Level 1", for manufacturing sites that produce medical
cannabis products using nonvolatile solvents.

® Type 7, “Manufacturing Level 2”, for manufacturing sites that produce medical
cannabis products using volatile (L.e. butane, hexane, ethanol, etc.) solvents. This
process will be regulated at a higher level. The State Department of Public Health shall
limit the number of licenses of this type.

Testing is required for all cannabis and cannabis products. Testing licensees (laboratories) must
adopt standard operation procedures using methods consistent with general requirements for
the competence of testing and calibration activities, including sampling, using standard
methods established by the International Organization for Standardization.

® Type 8, “Testing”, Testing licensees shall have their facilities licensed according to the
regulations set forth in Section 19341 et. seq. of the Business and Professions Code. A
testing licensee shall not hold a license in another license and shall not own or have
ownership interest in any other license type.

Dispensaries will operate much the same way as they do today from the patient’s perspective.
However, on the business side, things will change. Dispensaries will be prevented from
purchasing or accepting product from an unlicensed grower, and all products within the
dispensary will be tracked and traced from the moment it enters the dispensary to the point of
sale.

® Type 10, “Dispensary; General”, Dispensaries are facilities where medical cannabis,
medical cannabis products, or devices for the use of medical cannabis or medical
cannabis products are offered either individually or in any combination, for retail sale,
including an establishment that delivers, pursuant to express authorization by local
ordinance, medical cannabis and medical cannabis products as part of a retail sale. Only
one retail site is allowed and no other licenses are allowed under the Type 10 license.

® Type 10A, “Dispensary; No More Than 3 Retail Sites”, A Type 10A dispensary licensee
may apply for other licenses in an effort to be vertically integrated, which is required in
some cities. And even though a dispensary may obtain a cultivator and/or
manufacturing license, it must first transport all cannabis through a distributor and

Medical Man'juana Commercial Land Use Regulafiéhg PC February 23, 2016 .

30



testing licensee before it re-enters the dispensary (if the grow is located in the same
place) for sale,

The Distribution license is intended to coordinate the distribution of cannabis in a tracked and
orderly fashion. It is designed to help assure the delivery of safe cannabis for patients by forcing
all cannabis through a third party distributor and testing licensee.

All cultivation and manufacturing licensees must send all harvested and manufactured cannabis
to a distributor for quality assurance and inspection. The distributor will be required to make
sure the cannabis receives a “batch test” analysis and certification before sendingitto a
dispensary.

As mentioned above, even if a dispensary has a cultivation license as part of its operation at the
same location, it must send all cannabis off-site to a third-party distributor for testing before it
is dispensed. Although a cultivator and dispensary may have contracted to buy cannabis at a
certain price and quantity, the distributor remains obligated to carry out the terms of that
agreement and is authorized to charge a commission or fee for doing so. As opposedto a
transporter who may obtain a distributor license, a distributor must obtain a transporter
license.

® Type 11, “Distribution”, A distributor is a person permitted to engage in the in the
business of purchasing, medical cannabis from a licensed cultivator, or medical cannabis
products from a licensed manufacturer, for sale to a licensed dispensary.

Traditionally, growers transported cannabis to a dispensary. Now, a third party is required to
transport cannabis from the farm or processing facility to the distributor and then from the
distributor to the dispensary. In fact, a transporter’s license is required to transport cannabis
from any one licensee to another, regardless of type.

® Type 12, Transporter”, Transporters will be prohibited from having a cultivator,
manufacturer, or any other license by the state, except for a distributor license, which a
transporter may hold.
Staff's Recommendations
Cultivation
The type of License that shall be required in order to engage in the commercial cultivation of
cannabis for medical use within the City shall be determined by the size of the parcel on which

the activity is to be conducted in accordance with the Table of License Types.

Outdoor and Mixed-Light commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use shall be conducted
entirely within a fully enclosed, secure and lockable greenhouse and shall be conditionally

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regufations PC Februarj/ 23,2016

31



permitted in the Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations, pursuant to the “Outdoor”
and “Mixed-Light” parcel size and cultivation area provisions described in the Table of License
Types, and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in the ordinance and as deemed
appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City Council.

Table of License Types

Type 1 Outdoor {Greenhouse), no artificial Ilghtlng

J Allowable Canopy

i

(A) 1-4.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.

{B) 5-9.99 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
Q) 10-19.99 acres 22,000 sq. ft,
(D) 2 20 acres 43,560 sq. ft.

Type 2: Mixed Light, combination of natural and artificial supplemental lighting.

(A} <1acre 2,500 sq. ft.
(B) 1-1.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.
{C) 2-2.49 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
(D) 2 2.5 acres 22,000 sq. ft.

Indoor commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use shall be conditionally permitted in
the Industrial Commercial (IC), Rural (R) and Natural Resources {NR) designations pursuant to
the “Indoor” parcel size and cultivation area provisions described in the Table of License Types,
and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in the proposed ordinance and as
deemed appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City Council.

Nurseries, as defined by the MMRSA, producing commercial cannabis nursery products for
retail sale, bulk wholesale sale or to supply retail nursery outlets shall be a conditionally
permitted use in the Industrial Commercial {IC}, Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR)
designations, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in
the proposed ordinance and as deemed appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City
Council.

Table of License Types

[ T T e T S T

Ltcense Type — - “ﬂ Pé-}ielg;_z__ep: 2 1EW—7
Type 3: Indor, elusivelv artlf‘ cual Itghtmg & -
{A) <1acre 2,500 sq. ft.
{(B) 1-1.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.
Q) 2-2.49 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
(D) 2 2.5 acres 22,000 sq. ft.
! Type 4: Nursery N/A 43,560 sq. ft.

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PC February 23, 2016

32



Processing Facilities

Processing Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shall be considered an accessory
and ancillary use on approved cultivation sites. Stand alone processing facilities are
recommended to be a conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC), Rural (R)
and Natural Resources (NR) designations zoning districts, subject to a Conditional Use Permit
and the conditions and limitations set forth in the proposed ordinance.

Manufacturing

Manufacturing of commercial cannabis for medical use shall be a conditionally permitted use in
the Industrial Commercial {IC) designation, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the
conditions and limitations set forth in the proposed ordinance and as deemed appropriate by
Planning Commission and/or the City Council.

Testing Laboratories

Testing laboratories would be treated no differently than any other testing laboratory. As such,
medical cannabis laboratories would be principally permitted in the Town Center (TC),
Community Commercial (CC} and Neighborhood Center land use designations and conditionally
permitted in the Residential Multifamily (RM) land use designation.

Dispensaries

Currently the City does not allow medical cannabis dispensaries, Ordinance No. 275. The
County has indicated that they plan to allow fifteen (15) additional dispensaries, five (5) in the
northern part of the County, five (5) in the mid part of the County and five {5) in the southern
part of the County. Its staffs understanding that there are three (3) permitted dispensaries
within the County. Two (2} of them are located in the City of Arcata and one (1) is located in
Garberville. The Garberville dispensary does not sell raw cannabis, only edibles, oils, salves and
tinctures.

Obviously it would be convenient for those patients living within the City to have access to their
medicine within the City. A dispensary would also provide economic benefits to the City. In
addition to sales tax, the City could adopt other taxes through the Proposition 218 process.
Some Cities have flat taxes based on square footage and/or taxes based on overall sales. In
addition, a dispensary in the City could attract travelers/tourists to visit the City which could
benefit other businesses within the City.

If the Commission and the City Council were interested in allowing dispensaries, staff would
recommend that they (it) be restricted to the Town Center zone, allowed with a Conditional
Use Permit.

Medical Manjuarié Commercial Land Use Rééulations FC February 23, 2016

33



Wholesale Distribution Facilities

Wholesale Distribution Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shalt be a
conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial {IC) designation, subjectto a
Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in this proposed ordinance
and as deemed appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City Council.

Distribution and Transporters

As staff understands, the State is the sole licensing authority for Type 11 (Distribution} and Type
12 (Transporter)} permits.

Procedural Requirements.

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance:

* An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action of the Planning
Commission, or the City Council.

» The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment
shall be filed in the office of the City Cierk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing
fee.

» Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing.

e Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three
public places.

* At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

* Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore.

¢ Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council,
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and piace of the hearing shall be given as
provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof.

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regulations PG February 23, 2016



* At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof.

¢ The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council.

Zone Reclassification Required Findings:

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected.

There are no polices in the General Plan which would prohibit the City from establishing
medical marijuana commercial land use regulations. Of course there are policies encouraging
economic development.

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Based on the nature of the project including recommended zoning districts and the
discretionary Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process, staff has determined that the project is
Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3
of the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines
this exemption is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on
the environment, the project is not subject to CEQA. Staff believes there is no evidence to
suggest that the amendments will have a significant effect on the environment.

Attachments

Attachment 1: Draft Ordinance No. 342-2016. Establishment of a Commercial Medical
Marijuana Land Use Ordinance ({CMMLUO), Section 17.30.195 of Title 17 of the
Rio Dell Municipal Code.

Attachment 2: Resolution No. PC 094-2016 recommending that the City Counci! adopt
Ordinance No. 342-2016 establishing a Commercial Medical Marijuana Land Use
Ordinance (CMMLUQ), Section 17.30.195 of Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal
Code.

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Regufétions PC Febma:ﬂf_23, 2016

35



ORDINANCE NO. 342-2016

Oty oF

i

=

Coal FomsaA

An ordinance establishing Section 17.30.195 of Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal
Code relating to the Commercial Cultivation, Processing, Manufacturing and
Distribution of Cannabis for Medical Use.

The City Council of the City of Rio Dell ordains as follows:

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65850, et seq. authorizes counties and cities to
regulate land use, including agriculture, and to adopt and amend zoning ordinances for such
purposes, and sets forth procedures governing the adoption and amendment of such
ordinances; and

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015 Governor Brown approved a package of three bills enacted by
the legislature on September 11, 2015, SB 643, AB 243, and AB 266, providing for
comprehensive, concurrent regulation and licensing by state and local governments of medical
marijuana as an agricultural product, including its cultivation, processing, testing, manufacture,
distribution, transportation, dispensing, and delivery; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11362.777, subsection (c)(3), "A city, county, or city and county's
locally issued conditional permit requirements must be at least as stringent as the Department
of Food and Agriculture's state licensing requirements”; and

WHEREAS, the state statutes establishing a regulated, legitimate basis for commercial
medical cannabis economic activities under the authorization of state law provide an
opportunity to bring unregulated activities into compliance with existing law and ameliorate
adverse environmental impacts, while bringing it out of the shadows of an underground,
black-market economy into a legitimate agricultural and commercial contributor to the local
and state economy; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell has previously adopted a land use ordinance governing
indoor and outdoor cultivation of medical marijuana for personal use; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed Ordinance
governing the Commercial Cultivation, Processing, Manufacturing and Distribution of Cannabis
for Medical Use commencing on February 23, 2016, to receive a report on the draft ordinance,
as well as evidence and testimony; and

ATTACHMENT 1 36



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and considered the report, evidence, and other
testimony presented to the Commission, and recommended revisions to the draft land use
Ordinance Governing the Commercial Cultivation of Commercial Cultivation, Processing,
Manufacturing and Distribution for Medical Use; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby
ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 17.30.195 of Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby added as
follows:

(1) Authority and Title

This Section shall be known as the Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Ordinance
(“MMCLUO"), which provides for the regulation of Commercial Cultivation, Processing,
Manufacturing and Distribution of cannabis for medical use, as defined in this Code, located
within the City of Rio Dell

(2) Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this Section is to establish land use regulations concerning the commercial
cultivation, processing, manufacturing and distribution of cannabis for medical use within the
City of Rio Dell in order to limit and control such cultivation in coordination with the State of
California in the implementation of the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act
(MMRSA)(SB 643, AB 266, and AB 243 as adopted September 11, 2015, and approved by the
Governor on October 9, 2015), so as to ensure the health and safety of employees,
independent contractors, visitors to the area, neighboring property owners, and end users of
medical marijuana; to protect the environment from harm to streams, fish, and wildlife; to

37



ensure the security of the medical marijuana; and to safeguard against the diversion of medical
marijuana for non-medical purposes. It is intended to address the City of Rio Dell's prerogative
to license, permit, and control commercial cultivation, processing, manufacturing and
distribution of cannabis for medical marijuana as set forth in the MMRSA, including, but not
limited to the provisions of Business and Professions Code Sections 19315, 19316, 19320,
19322, 19332, and 19360 and Health and Safety Code Section 11362.777, in conjunction with
state licensing requirements, in order to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Rio Dell, and to reduce or eliminate any adverse environmental effects
of existing commercial cannabis cultivation operations in the City of Rio Dell, and to prevent
adverse environmental effects of any new commercial cannabis activities which may be
permitted in the future in accordance with this Section and state law. This Section is not
intended to supersede the provisions of Section 17.30.190 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code
concerning cultivation of medical marijuana for personal use.

(3) Applicability and Interpretation

(3) These regulations shall apply to the location and permitting of commercial cultivation,
processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use in zoning districts
within which such use is authorized, as specified in this Section.

{b) The commercial cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for
medical use within the jurisdiction of the City of Rio Dell shall be controlled by the
provisions of this Section, regardless of whether those activities existed or occurred prior to
the adoption of this Section.

{c} Nothing in this Section is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt the commercial
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use, from
compliance with alf other applicable zoning, and land use regulations, as well as compliance
with any applicable state laws.

(d)} Nothing in this Section is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt the commercial
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, and distribution of cannabis for medical use, as
defined herein, from any and all applicable local and state construction, electrical,
plumbing, land use, water rights, waste water discharge, streambed alteration, or any other
environmental, building or land use standards or permitting requirements.

(e} Nothing in this Section Is intended, nor shall it be construed, to preclude a landlord or
property owner from limiting or prohibiting commercial cultivation, processing,

manufacturing, or distribution of cannabis for medical use on private property.

(f) The definitions in this Section are intended to apply solely to the regulations in this section.

38



(8) Notwithstanding the fact that Health and Safety Code Section 11362.777 declares that
medical cannabis is an agricultural product for purposes of that Section and the MMRSA,
Business and Professions Code Section 19300, et. seq., the commercial cultivation of
cannabis for medical use is a highly regulated specialty crop and cultivation and processing
of that specialty crop shall not be allowed as a principal permitted use unless a Conditional
Use Permit is first obtained from the City of Rio Dell, and the person engaged in such activity
has obtained all state licenses and permits which may be required by the applicable state
licensing authorities whenever such licenses become available.

(4) Release of Liability and Hold Harmless

As a condition of approval for any Conditional Use Permit approved for the commercial
cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical use, as defined
herein, the owner or permittee shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of Rio Dell and its
agents, officers, elected officials, and employees for any claims, damages, or injuries brought by
affected property owners or other third parties due to the commercial cultivation, processing,
manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical use and for any claims brought by any
person for problems, injuries, damages, or liabilities of any kind that may arise out of the
commercial cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical use.

(5) Penalties and Enforcement

All of the remedies provided for in this Section shall be cumulative and not exclusive of
remedies available for violations under any other Section of the Rio Dell Municipal Code and
the MMRSA

Any violation of this Section, including, but not limited to failure to obtain and maintain in good
standing the required Conditional Use Permit specified in this Section, shall be, and the same
hereby is declared to be, a public nuisance and unlawful and shall be subject to injunction,
abatement or any other administrative, civil, or criminal remedy available to the City under the
applicable state and City laws, including those set forth in the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

(6) Definitions

“Area of Traditional Tribal Cultural Affiliation” means geographic areas of historic occupancy
and traditional cultural use by local indigenous peoples (California Native American Tribes), as
shown on the latest mapping prepared by the County of Humboldt Planning & Building
Department, created from geographic information supplied by the Tribes of Humboldt County.

“Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis
ruderalis, or any other strain or varietal of the genus Cannabis that may exist or hereafter be
discovered or developed that has psychoactive or medicinal properties, whether growing or

39



not, including the seeds thereof. “Cannabis” also means marijuana as defined by Section 11018
of the Health and Safety Code as enacted by Chapter 1407 of the Statutes of 1972. For the
purpose of this section, “cannabis” does not mean “industrial hemp” as defined by Section
81000 of the Food and Agriculture Code or Section 11018.5 of the Health and Safety Code.

“Commercial Cannabis Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing,
harvesting, drying, curing, grading, or trimming of cannabis for medical use, including nurseries,
that is intended to be transported, processed, manufactured, distributed, dispensed, delivered,
or sold in accordance with the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act (MMRSA) for use
by medical cannabis patients in California pursuant to the Compassionate Use Act of 1996
{Proposition 215), found at Section 11362.5 of the Health and Safety Code.

“Cultivation Area” the area encompassed by the perimeter surrounding the area within which
cannabis plants are cultivated. Where plants are cultivated in separated pots, beds or plots, the
cumulative total surface area of all such pots, beds or plots, and the surface area underneath
the maximum anticipated extent of vegetative growth of cannabis plants to be grown in
separate pots, beds or plots, used in combination for a single permitted cultivation operation.

“Cultivation site” means the location or a facility where medical cannabis is planted, grown,
harvested, dried, cured, graded, or trimmed, or that does all or any combination of those
activities, except where drying, curing, grading or trimming is otherwise prohibited.

“Distribution Facility” means the iocation or a facility where a person licensed with a Type 11
license pursuant to the MMRSA conducts the business of procuring medical cannabis from
licensed cultivators or manufacturers for sale to licensed dispensaries, and the inspection,
quality assurance, batch testing by a Type 8 licensee, storage, labeling, packaging and other
processes prior to transport to licensed dispensaries.

“Indoor” means indoor cultivation using exclusively artificial lighting.

“Licensee” means a person issued a state license under the MMRSA to engage in commercial
cannabis activity.
“Manufacturing Facility” means a process whereby the raw agricultural product is transformed

into a concentrate, an edible product, or a topical product, and the production, preparation,
propagation, or compounding of medical cannabis or medical cannabis products, directly or
indirectly, by extraction methods, independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a
combination of extraction and chemical synthesis.

“Mixed-Light” means cultivation using a combination of natural and supplemental artificial
lighting at a maximum threshold as set forth in performance standards in Section 55.4.11 (t), et
seq. of this ordinance, or as to be determined by the Department of Food and Agriculture,
whichever is less.

40



“Nursery” means a licensee that produces only clones, immature plants, seeds, and other
agricultural products for retail or wholesale sale, used specifically for the planting, propagation,
and cultivation of medical cannabis.

“Outdoor” means outdoor cultivation using no artificial lighting.

“Person” means an individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation, limited
liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or any other group or
combination acting as a unit and includes the plural as well as the singular number.

“Premises” means a legal parcel compliant with the Subdivision Map Act, or a leasehold interest
in agricultural land for agricultural purposes of outdoor or mixed-light cultivation or processing
of medical cannabis, or space in an industrial or commercial building for purposes of indoor
cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of medical cannabis.

“Processing Facility” means the location or facility where medical cannabis is dried, cured,
graded, trimmed, and/or packaged by or under the contro! of one or more licensed cultivators,
at a location separate from the cultivation site where the medical cannabis is grown and
harvested.

“State license,” means a state license issued pursuant to the MMRSA.

“Tribal Cultural Resources” means sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and
objects with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, including unique

archaeological resources and historical resources as described under sections 21074,
21083.2(g), and 21084.1 of the Public Resources Code, respectively. Tribal Cultural Resource
shall also include sites or resources identified by the tribe through an action of the Tribal
Council or equivalent body.

(7) General Provisions

This section applies to all facilities and activities involved in the Commercial Cultivation,
Processing, Manufacture, or Distribution of cannabis for medical use, as defined in this Section.

(a} All commercial cultivation, processing, manufacture, or distribution of cannabis for medical
use shall operate in compliance with this Section, as well as all applicable state and local
laws.

(b) Outdoor and Mixed-Light commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use shall be
conducted entirely within a fully enciosed, secure and lockable greenhouse and shall be
conditionally permitted in the Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations, pursuant
to the “Outdoor” and “Mixed-Light” parcel size and cultivation area provisions described in

41



(c)

(d

L —

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

()

the Table of Permit Types, and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in this
Section

Indoor commercial cultivation of cannabis for medical use shall be conditionally permitted

in the Industrial Commercial (IC), Rural (R) and Natural Resources (NR) designations
pursuant to the “Indoor” parcel size and cultivation area provisions described in the Table of
Permit Types, and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section.

Processing Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shall be a conditionally
permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC), Rural {R) and Natural Resources (NR}
designations zoning districts, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and
limitations set forth in this Section.

Manufacturing of commercial cannabis for medical use shall be a conditionally permitted
use in the Industrial Commercial {IC) designation, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and
the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section.

Wholesale Distribution Facilities for commercial cannabis for medical use shall be a
conditionally permitted use in the Industrial Commercial {IC) designation, subject to a
Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section.

Nurseries, as defined herein, producing commercial cannabis nursery products for retail
sale, bulk wholesale sale or to supply retail nursery outlets shall be a conditionally
permitted use in the Industrial Commercial (IC), Rural {R) and Natural Resources {NR)
designations, subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set
forth in this Section.

Other than as enumerated in this Section, the commercial cultivation, processing,
manufacturing or distribution of cannabis for medical use in any other zoning district in the
City of Rio Dell is prohibited.

The fact that an applicant possesses other types of state or county or city permits, licenses
or other entitlements does not exempt the applicant from the requirement of obtaining a
Conditional Use Permit from the City of Rio Dell to engage in the commercial cultivation,
processing, manufacturing or distribution of cannabis for medical use within the jurisdiction
of the City.

No more than four commercial cannabis activity permits of any type enumerated in
Sections 17.30.195(8)(b) through 17.30.195(8)(g) of this ordinance may be issved to a single
person, as defined herein. For purposes of this limitation, any natural person who owns or
controls any interest, directly or indirectly, in a firm, partnership, joint venture, association,
cooperative, collective, corporation, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust,

42



receiver, syndicate, or any other group or combination acting as a unit, shall be collectively
considered a single person with those entities.

(8) License Types, Parcel Size and Allowable Canopy

The type of License that shall be required in order to engage in the commercial cultivation of
cannabis for medical use within the City shall be determined by the size of the parcel on which

the activity is to be conducted in accordance with the following table:

|License Type

Type 1: Outdoor, no artificial lighting.

EE Ly m— gD ‘.__ et l _’"-"":"“""_""'_rn""""' ‘."'_"'"'._.-"'—'—.-".—."' v
P =T 1 | ParcelSize | Allowable Canopy

(A) 1-4.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.
(B) 5-9.99 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
{C) 10-19.99 acres 22,000 sq. ft.
(D) 2 20 acres 43,560 sq. ft.
i Type 2: Indoor, exclusively artificial lighting.
(A) <1acre 2,500 sq. ft.
(8} 1-1.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.
{C) 2-2.49 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
(D) > 2.5 acres 22,000 sq. ft.
: Type 3: Mixed Light, combination of natural and artificial supplemental lighting.
(A) <1 acre 2,500 sq. ft.
(B) 1-1.99 acres 5,000 sq. ft.
{C) 2-2.49 acres 10,000 sq. ft.
(D) 2 2.5 acres 22,000 sq. fi.
Type 4: Nursery N/A 43,560 sq. ft.

(a) Processing of cannabis that is cultivated pursuant to these regulations may occur at the
cultivation site subject to the Processing Performance Standards and Employee Safety
Practices enumerated in Section 17.30.195(10) thru 17.30.195(12) are met.

(b) Multiple applicants may obtain a License for outdoor cultivation, mixed-light cultivation, or
both, on one legal parcel so long as the cumulative cultivation area is within one contiguous
cultivation footprint that does not exceed the total cultivation area size limits set forth in the
Table of Commercial Cannabis Cultivation License Types, Parcel Sizes and Allowable
Canopies.

43



(c) A combination of the License types that may be allowed in the same zone (e.g. outdoor and,
mixed light cultivation, or indoor cultivation and processing) that are for a total area equal
to or less than the cultivated area size limit for the size of the underlying parcel for those
License types.

(9) Application Requirements for All MMCLUO Permits and Licenses:
{a) The name, contact address and phone number(s} of the applicant.

(b) If the applicant is not the record title owner of parcel, written consent of the owner for the
application with original signature and notary acknowledgement.

(c) Site plan showing the entire parcel, including easements, streams and other surface water
features, and the location and area for cultivation on the parcel with dimensions of the area
for cultivation and setbacks from property lines. The site plan shall also include all areas of
ground disturbance or surface water disturbance associated with cultivation activities,
including: access roads, water diversions, culverts, ponds, dams, graded flats, and other
related features. If the area for cultivation is within % mile {1,320 ft.) of a school, school bus
stop, church or other place of religious worship, public park, or Tribal Cultural Resource, the
site plan shall include dimensions showing that the distance from the location of such
features to the nearest point of the cultivation area is at least 600 feet.

(d) A cultivation and operations plan that meets or exceeds minimum legal standards for water
storage, conservation and use; drainage, runoff and erosion control; watershed and habitat
protection; and proper storage of fertilizers, pesticides, and other regulated products to be
used on the parcel, and a description of cultivation activities (outdoor, indoor, mixed light),
the approximate date(s) cannabis cultivation activities have been conducted on the parcel
prior to the effective date of this ordinance, if applicable, and schedule of activities during
each month of the growing and harvesting season.

{e) Copy of the statement of water diversion, or other permit, license or registration filed with
the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Water Rights, if applicable.

(f) Description of water source, irrigation plan, and projected water usage.

(g) Copy of Notice of intent and Monitoring Self-Certification and other documents filed with
the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board demonstrating enrollment in Tier 1, 2
or 3, North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board Order No. 2015-0023, or any
substantially equivalent rule that may be subsequently adopted by the City of Rio Dell or
other responsible agency.



(h) If any on-site or off-site component of the cultivation facility, including access roads, water
supply, grading or terracing impacts the bed or bank of any stream or other watercourse, a
copy of the Streambed Alteration Permit obtained from the Department of Fish & Wildlife.

(i} If the source of water is a well, a copy of the County well permit, if available.

(i) 1f the parcel involves the conversion of timberland as defined under section 4526 of the
Public Resources Code, a copy of a less-than-3-acre conversion exemption or timberland
conversion permit, approved by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
(CAL-FIRE).

(k) Consent for onsite inspection of the parcel by City officials at prearranged date and time in
consultation with the applicant prior to issuance of the required Conditional Use Permit and
License, and once annually thereafter.

() Forindoor cultivation facilities, identify the source of electrical power and plan for
compliance with applicable Building Codes

(m)Acknowledge that the City reserves the right to engage with local Tribes before consenting
to the issuance of any clearance or permit, if cultivation operations occur within an Area of
Traditional Tribal Cultural Affiliation, as defined herein. This process will follow current
departmental referral protocol, including engagement with the Tribe(s) through
coordination with their Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) or other tribal
representatives. This procedure shall be conducted similar to the protocols outlined under
SB 18 (Burton) and AB 52 {Gatto), which describe “government to government”
consultation, through tribal and local government officials and their designees. During this
process, the tribe may request that operations associated with the clearance or permit be
designed to avoid, minimize or mitigate impacts to Tribal Cultural Resources, as defined
herein. Examples include, but are not limited to: conducting a site visit with the THPO or
their designee to the existing or proposed cultivation site, requiring that a professional
cultural resources survey be performed, or requiring that a tribal cultural monitor be
retained during project-related ground disturbance within areas of sensitivity or concern.
The City shall request that a records search be performed through the California Historical
Resources Information System (CHRIS).

(10) Performance Standards for all MMCLUO Cultivation and Processing Operations:

{a) Cannabis cultivation and other commercial cannabis activity shall be conducted in
compliance with all laws, except if upon inspection for the initial application, violations of
any building or other health, safety, or other state or county statute, ordinance, or
regulation are discovered, compliance with a written approved compliance agreement
signed by the applicant and the relevant enforcement agency or agencies, to abate or cure



violations at the earliest feasible date, but in no event no more than two (2) years of the
date of issuance of the required Conditional Use Permit and License. Applicants shall
provide plans for curing such violations to the Planning & Building Department within one
(1) year of issuance of the provisional clearance or permit. Once the violations are cured,
the permit will no longer be provisional. The violations subject to a compliance agreement
pursuant to this paragraph shall be related to land conversion, on-site grading, electricity
usage, water usage, agricultural discharges, and similar matters and limited to those
improvements, facilities, buildings and sites that are used for commercial cannabis activity
and shall not extend to personal residences or other structures that are not used for
commercial cannabis activity. The terms of the compliance agreement may be appealed
pursuant to Section 17.30.195(14) below, except the Planning Commission, and not the
Zoning Administrator, shall act as Hearing Officer, and shall make a determination within
thirty {30) days of the conclusion of the hearing.

(b) Possession of a current, valid required license, or licenses, issued by any agency of the State
of California in accordance with the MMRSA, and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(c) Compliance with all statutes, regulations and requirements of the California State Water
Resources Control Board, Division of Water Rights, at a minimum to include a statement of
diversion of surface water from a stream, river, underground stream, or other watercourse
required by Water Code Section 5101, or other applicable permit, license, or registration.

{d) The area of cannabis cultivation shall be located as shown on the application site plan, set
back at least 50 feet from any property line, and 600 feet from any School, School Bus Stop,
Church or other Place of Religious Worship, Public Park, or Tribal Cultural Resources. The
minimum setback required from property lines or adjacent uses may be waived or reduced
with the express consent of the adjacent property owner and occupant. Cannabis
cultivation is declared to be development, subject to compliance with Section 17.30.110,
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area’s (ESHA’s).  For purposes of this section, where
enhanced, reduced, or modified watercourse or wetland setbacks have been agreed to by
the operator and the RWQCB under enroliment pursuant to NCRWQB Order No. 2015-0023
and/or preparation of a Water Resources Protection Plan, these may control and supersede
any setback applied pursuant to Section 17.30.110.

(e) Maintain enrollment in Tier 1, 2 or 3, certification with the North Coast Regional Water
Quality Control Board Order No. 2015-0023, if applicable, or any substantially equivalent
rule that may be subsequently adopted by the City of Rio Dell or other responsible agency.

(f) For cultivation areas for which no enrollment pursuant to NCRWQB Order No. 2015-
0023, is required by that Order, compliance with the standard conditions applicable to all
Tier 1 dischargers.



(g) Comply with the terms of any applicable Streambed Alteration Permit obtained from the
Department of Fish & Wildlife.

(h) Comply with the terms of a less-than-3-acre conversion exemption or timberland
conversion permit, approved by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection

{CAL-FIRE).
(i) Consent to a minimum at least two {2) annual on-site compliance inspection, to be
conducted by appropriate City officials during regular business hours {Monday — Friday,

9:00 am - 5:00 pm, excluding holidays).

(i} Refrain from the improper storage or use of any fuels, fertilizer, pesticide, fungicide,

rodenticide, or herbicide. Hazardous materials and wastes from agricultural businesses are

regulated by the Humboldt County Environmental Health Division, which administers the
Hazardous Materials program as one of the Certified Unified Program Agencies (CUPA).
This includes the application, inspection, enforcement, and reporting under the program
requirements and standards set by the California Environmental Protection Agency
(CalEPA).

(k} Pay all applicable application and annual inspection fees.

(I} Where surface water diversion provides any part of the water supply for irrigation of
cannabis cultivation, the applicant shall either: 1) consent to forebear from any such
diversion during the period from May 15" to October 31% of each year and establish onsite
water storage for retention of wet season flows sufficient to provide adequate irrigation
water for the size of the area to be cultivated, or 2) submit a water management plan
prepared by a qualified person such as a licensed engineer, hydrologist, or similar qualified
professional, that establishes minimum water storage and forbearance period, if required,
based upon local site conditions, or 3} obtain approval from the RWQCB through
enroliment pursuant to NCRWQB Order No. 2015-0023 and/or preparation of a Water
Resources Protection Plan.

(m)Trucked water shall not be allowed as the primary water source. Water is to be sourced
locally {on-site), except for emergencies. For purposes of this provision, “emergency” is
defined as: “a sudden, unexpected occurrence demanding immediate action.”

(n) Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parcel which may be
imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit.

47



(11) Performance Standards for Cultivation and Processing Activities:

() Pursuant to the MMRSA, Health and Safety Code section 19322(a)(9), an applicant seeking a
cultivation license shall “provide a statement declaring the applicant is an ‘agricultural
employer,” as defined in the Alatorre-Zenovich-Dunlap-Berman Agricultural Labor Relations
Act of 1975 (Part 3.5 commencing with Section 1140} of Division 2 of the Labor Code), to
the extent not prohibited by law.”

(b) Cultivators shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations
governing California Agricultural Employers, which may include: federal and state wage and
hour laws, CAL/OSHA, OSHA, California Agricultural Labor Relations Act, and the Humboldt
County Code (including the Building Code).

{c) Cultivators engaged in processing shall comply with the following Processing Practices:

i.  Processing operations must be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition including all
work surfaces and equipment; and

it. Processing operations must implement protocols which prevent processing
contamination and mold and mildew growth on cannabis; and

iii. Employees handling cannabis in processing operations must have access to facemasks
and gloves in good operable condition as applicable to their job function; and

iv. Employees must wash hands sufficiently when handling cannabis or use gloves.

{d) All persons hiring employees to engage in commercial cannabis cultivation and processing
shall comply with the following Employee Safety Practices:

i. Cultivation operations and processing operations must implement safety protocols and
provide all employees with adequate safety training relevant to their specific job
functions, which may include:

® Emergency action response planning as necessary; and
® Employee accident reporting and investigation policies; and

® Fire prevention;

® Hazard communication policies, including maintenance of material safety data sheets
{(MSDS); and

48



iv.

e Materials handling policies; and
e Job hazard analyses; and
e Personal protective equipment policies, including respiratory protection.

Cultivation operations and processing operations must visibly post and maintain an
emergency contact list which includes at a minimum:

® Operation manager contacts; and

e Emergency responder contacts; and

® Poison control contacts.
At all times, employees shall have access to safe drinking water and toilets and
handwashing facilities that comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and
regulations. Plumbing facilities and water source must be capable of handling increased

usage without adverse consequences to neighboring properties or the environment.

On site-housing provided to employees shall comply with all applicable federal, state,
and local laws and regulations.

(e} All cultivators shall, at the time of the application for a cultivation permit, include a
Processing Plan with all of the following:

vi.

vii.

Summary of Processing Practices.
Description of location where processing will occur.

Estimated number of employees, if any.

. Summary of Employee Safety Practices.

Description of toilet and handwashing facilities.

vi. Description of plumbing and/or septic system and whether or not the system is
capable of handling increased usage.

Description of source of drinking water for employees.

49



viii. Description of increased road use resulting from processing and a plan to minimize that
impact.

ix. Description of on-site housing, if any.
(12) Performance Standards for Mixed-Light Cultivation:

{a) Those cultivators using artificial lighting for mixed-light cultivation shall shield greenhouses
so that little to no light escapes. Light shall not escape at a level that is visible from
neighboring properties between sunset and sunrise.

(b) The light source should comply with the International Dark Sky Association standards for
Lighting Zone 0 and Lighting Zone 1, and be designed to regulate light spillage onto
neighboring properties resulting from backlight, uplight, or glare (BUG). Should the
Humboldt County Planning Division receive complaints that the lighting is out of alignment
or not complying with these standards, within ten {10) working days of receiving written
notification that a complaint has been filed, the applicant shall submit written verification
that the lights’ shielding and alignment has been repaired, inspected and corrected as
necessary.

{c) The noise produced by a generator used for cannabis cultivation shall not be audible from
neighboring residences. The decibel level for generators at the property line shall be no
more than 60 decibels.

(d) Storage of Fuel. Fuel shall be stored and handled in compliance with applicable state and
local laws and regulations, and in such a way that no spillage occurs.

(13) Term of Conditional Use Permit and License; Annual Inspection.

(a) Any Conditional Use Permit and License issued pursuant to this section shall expire after
one (1) year after date of issuance, and on the anniversary date of such issuance each year
thereafter, unless an annual compliance inspection has been conducted and the permitted
site has been found to comply with all conditions of approval.

(b) If the inspector or other City official determines that the site does not comply with the
conditions of approval, the inspector shall serve the permit holder with a written statement
identifying the items not in compliance, and the action that the permit holder may take to
cure the non-compliance, or file an appeal within ten (10) days of the date that the written
statement is delivered to the permit holder. Personal delivery or mailing the written
statement to the mailing address listed on the application by regular mail, plus three (3)
days after date of mailing, shall constitute delivery. The permit holder may request a
reinspection to determine whether or not the permit holder has cured all issues of non-

50



compliance. Failure to request reinspection or to cure any items of noncompliance shall
terminate the Conditional Use Permit and License, immediately upon the expiration of any
appeal period, or final determination of the appeal if an appeal has been timely filed.

(c) The City shall notify any state license authority, as defined by the MMRSA, whenever the
Conditional Use Permit and License has been revoked or terminated.

(14) Appeal of Annual Inspection Determination

Within ten (10) business days after delivery of the statement of non-compliance, the
determination by the inspector that the site is or is not in compliance may be appealed by any
interested party to the Planning Commission. The appeal shall be made, in writing, on a form
provided by the City. The fee for filing the appeal is based on the adopted fee schedule in effect
at the time of the appeal.

(a) The appeal shall be heard by the Planning Commission within thirty (30) days following the
filing of the appeal. The Planning Commission shall render a written ruling on the appeal
within three (3) business days following the hearing.

(b) The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council in accordance
with Section 17.35.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code. If a timely appeal to the City Council
is not filed, the ruling by the Planning Commission shall be final.

Section 2. Severability

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 3. Limitation of Actions

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of
this ordinance.

Section 4. Effective Date

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the

City Council of the City of Rio Dell on , 2016 and furthermore the forgoing
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the
City of Rio Dell, held on the , 2016 by the following vote:

51



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Frank Wilson, Mayor

ATTEST:

, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 342-2016 which was passed,
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on
the , 2016.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell

52



RESOLUTION NO. PC 094-2016

CITy oF

s

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION
17.30.195 OF TITLE 17 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO THE
COMMERCIAL CULTIVATION, PROCESSING, MANUFACTURING AND
DISTRIBUTION OF CANNABIS FOR MEDICAL USE,

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65850, et seq. authorizes counties and cities to
regulate land use, including agriculture, and to adopt and amend zoning ordinances for such
purposes, and sets forth procedures governing the adoption and amendment of such
ordinances; and

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015 Governor Brown approved a package of three bills enacted by
the legislature on September 11, 2015, SB 643, AB 243, and AB 266, providing for
comprehensive, concurrent regulation and licensing by state and iocal governments of medical
marijuana as an agricultural product, including its cultivation, processing, testing, manufacture,
distribution, transportation, dispensing, and delivery; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11362.777, subsection (c)(3), "A city, county, or city and county's
locally issued conditional permit requirements must be at least as stringent as the Department
of Food and Agriculture's state licensing requirements"; and

WHEREAS, the state statutes establishing a regulated, legitimate basis for commercial
medical cannabis economic activities under the authorization of state law provide an
opportunity to bring unregulated activities into compliance with existing law and ameliorate
adverse environmental impacts, while bringing it out of the shadows of an underground,
black-market economy into a legitimate agricultural and commercial contributor to the local
and state economy; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Deli has previously adopted a land use ordinance governing
indoor and outdoor cultivation of medical marijuana for personal use; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

Medical Marijuana Comrne;cial tand Use O.rdinance PC Resolution No. 94-261-6

ATTACHMENT 2

53



WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any
implementation programs that may be affected; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act

(CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell finds
that:

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific
plan; and

2. The proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the
CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio
Dell recommends that the City Council approve the proposed amendments to Chapter 17.10,
“Definitions”, of the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting
of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on , 2016 by the following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Nick Angeloff, Chairperson
ATTEST:

|, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. PC 094-2016 adopted by the
Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on January 14, 2016.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell

Medical Marijuana Commercial Land Use Ordinance Ptf-Resalution No. 94-2016



